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FEDERAL [LLCTION COMMISSION

WASHINGION. D.C. 20463

Neil Reiff, Esquire

Sleve Hershkowilz, Esquire AUG 27 2009
Sandler, Reiff & Young, P.C.
300 M Street, S.E.
Suite 1102
Washington, D.C. 20003
Re: MUR 6177
21st Century Democrats

Bill Combs, in his official capacily as treasurer
Dear Messrs, Reiffl and Hershkowitz:

On August 24, 2009, the Federal Election Commission accepted the signed
conciliation agreement submitted on your clients’ behalf in settlement of violations of
2 U.S.C. §§ 432(c) and (d), 434(b)(1) — (5), (8), and 11 C.F.R. §§ 102.9(a)(1), (2) and (4),
104.3(d), 104.11(a) and (b), provisions of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as
amended, and the Conumission’s regulations. Accordingly, the file has been closed in
this matter,

Documents related to the case will he placed on the public record within 30 days.
See Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforeement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003). Information derived in eonnection with any
coneiliation attempt will not become public without the written consent of the respondent
and the Commission. See 2 {].S.C. §437g (a)(4)(B).

Enclosed you will find a copy of the fully exccuted conciliation agreement for
your files. Please note that the civil penalty is due on September 1, 2009. If you bave
any questions, please contact mc at (202) 694-1650.

Sincercly,

LF—

Kamau Philbert
Staff Attorney

Enclosure
Conciliation Agreement
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 203 AUG 27 PH 2: 48

In the Matter of )
) MUR 6177
21" Century Democrats and )
Bill Combs, in his official )
capacity as treasurer )
CONCILIATION AGREEMENT

This natter was initiated by the Federal Election Cominission (“the Commission”)
pursuant to information ascertamed in the normal course of carrying ont its supervisory
responsibilities. The Commission found reason to believe that 21st Century Democrats and Bill
Combs, in his official capacity as treasurer (“Respondents™ or “the Committee™) violated
2 U.S.C. §§ 432(c) and (d), 434(b)(1) - (5), (8), and 11 C.F.R. §§ 102.9(a)(1), (2) and (4),
104.3(d), 104.11(a) and (b).

NOW, THEREFORE, the Commission and Respondents, having participated in informal

methods of conciliation, prior to a finding of probable cause to believe, do hereby agree as

follows:

L. The Coimnmission has jurisdiction over Respondents and the subject mattcr of this
proceeding, and this agreement has the effect of an agreement entered pursuant to 2 US.C.
§ 437g(a)(4)(A)()-
II.  Respondents have had a reasonable opportunity lo demonsirate that no action

should bc taken in this matter.

M. Respondents enter voluntarily into this agreement with the Commission.

o o~
. e - m
IV.  The pertinent facts in this matter are as follows: - - o
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MUR 6177

21* Cenlury Democrals, ¢f al.
Conculiation Agreement
Page 2 of 6

1. During 2003-2004 (“the time period™), the Commitiee, a political committee
within the meaning of 2 U.S.C. § 431(4), was a Washington, D.C.-bascd nonconnccted, multi-
candidate political comunittce, and a monthly filer.

2. During the time period, Michael Lux was the Committee’s treasurer.

FAILURE TO MAINTAIN RECORDS

3. Political committccs must maintain copics of contribution checks and
documentation for credit card receipts for individuals contributing in excess of $50, and for
individuals who contrihute more than $200 during any calendar year. 2 U.S.C. § 432(c);

11 CF.R. §§ 102.9(a)(1), (2) and (4). Political committees must retain these records for three
years. 2 U.S.C. § 432(d).

4. During the time period, Respondcents [ailed to maintain copies of conlributor
checks and credit card docuincntation for contrihutions from approximately 37.5% of
contributions from individuals in cxccss of $50 for the requisite three years, in violation of
2 US.C. §§ 432(¢c) and (d), and 11 CF.R. §§ 102.9(a)(1), (2) and (4).

REPORTING OF DEBTS AND VIOLATIONS

5. A political committee must disclose the amount and naturc of outstanding
dehts and ohligations until those debhts are extinguished. 2 U.S.C. § 434(h)(8) and 11 C.F R.
§§ 104.3(d) and 104.11(a).

6. Thc committcc must also [ilc scparatc schedules for debts owed by the
committee. 11 C.F.R. § 104.11(a). Debts of $500 or lcss must he reported once they have been
outstanding for 60 days from thc date incurred; thesc debts must be reported on the next regularly

scheduled rcport. 11 CF.R. § 104,11(b).
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7. In contrast, debts exceeding $500 must be disclosed on the report that includes
that date on which the debt was incurred. 11 C.F.R. § 104.11(h).

8. During the time period, the Committee failed to report most of its debts and
obligations, especially lo vendors. Subscquently, the Committce amcended its reports for 2004,
disclosing approximately $671,498 in previously unreported debt.

9. During the time period, Respondents failed to report dehts on the appropriate
schedules, and also failed to report repayments, in violation of 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(8) and
11 C.F.R. §§ 104.3(d), 104.11(a), and 104.11(a) and (b).

MISSTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITY

10. Each treasurer of a political committee must file reports of receipts and
dishursements with the Commission. 2 U.S.C. § 434(a); 11 C.F.R. § 104.1. These reports must
accuratcly reflect the committee’s cash on hand, receipts, and disbursements and the heginning
and the end of the reporting period, the total amount of disbursements for the reporting period
and the ealendar year, and transactions that are required to be itemized, including receipts and
disbursements above a certain level and Joint Federal/Non-Federal Activity (Schedules A, B and
H-4, respectively). 2 U.S.C. §§ 434(b)(1) - (5).

11. During calcndar ycar 2004, the Commillee filed reports that disclosed a net
total of $32,308 in understated receipts. Subsequently, the Committee filed amcndcd rcports,
which showed a net total of approximately $63,060 in understated receipts for 2004. The net
undcrstalcment of reccipts resulied from (he following crrors: the Commitlee’s failure to report

$122,408 in transfers from non-federal accounts and $1,405 in other political committee
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contributions; and its reporting of $3,943 in lransfers [romn non-fcdcral accounts that did not
oceur, in addilion to $56,810 in unexplained errors.

12.  Respondents contend that the errors described above were inadvertent and
delays in amending reports were caused by a vendor who was conlracted Lo provide accounting
services. When the Committee’s board of dircctors Icarncd about the dclays and crrors, it
discharged thc vendor and the scnior management of the Comunittee.

V. Respondents comsnitted the following violations:
1. Respondents failed to maintain copies of contributor checks and credit card
documentation for (he requisite three years, in violalion of 2 U.S.C. §§ 432(c) and (d), and
11 CF.R. §§ 102.9(a)(1), (2) and (4).

2. Respondents failed to report debts and repayments on the appropriate
schedules during the time period, in violation of 2 1J.S.C. § 434(h)(8) and 11 C.F.R. §§ 104.3(d),
104.11(a), and 104.11(a) and (b).

3. Respoudents violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 434(b)(1) — (5) by failing to accuralely

report transactions during the time period.
VL Respondents will take the following actions:

1. Respondents will pay a civil pcnalty to the Federal Election Commission in the
amounl of Twenty-Four Thousand Dollars ($24,000), pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)}(5)(A).

In ordinary circumstances, the Commission would seek a substantially higher civil penalty based
on the violations outlined in this agreement. However, the Commission is taking into account
the fact that the Committee currently has limited financial resources with which to pay an

appropriale civil penalty.
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a. Thc penalty will be paid in six consecutive monthly installment
payinents of $4,000 each as follows: $4,000 due on September 1, 2009; $4,000 due on October
1, 2009; $4,000 due on November 1, 2009; $4,000 due on December 1, 2009; $4,000 duc on
January 1, 2010; and $4,000 duc on Fcbruary 1, 2010.

b. In the event that any installment payinent is not received by the
Commission within five days of the due date, the Commission may, at its discretion, accelerate
the remaining payments and cause the entire amount {0 become due upon {en days writlen nolice
o Respondcnts. Failurc by the Commission to accelerate the payments with regard to any
overdue installinent shall not be construed as a waiver of its right to do so with regard to future
averdue installments.

2. Respondents will cease and desist from violating the Act and its underlying
regulations.
3. Respondents will correct the remaining reporting errors in its reports filed
during the tiine period within 30 days. See Paragraph I'X.
VII. The Commission, on request of anyone filing a complaint under 2 U.S.C.
§ 437g(a)(1) concerning the matters at issuc hcrein or on its own motion, may rcvicw compliance
with this agreement. If the Commission believes that this agreement or any requirement thereof
has heen violated, it may institute a civil action for relief in the United States District Court for
the District of Columbia.
V1II. This agreement shall become effective as of the date that all parties hereto have

executed sume and the Commission has approved the cntire agreement.
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IX. With the exception of the penalty payment schedule set forth in Paragraph VI,
Respondents shall have no more than 30 days from the date this agreement becomes effective to
comply wilth and implcnicnt the requircments containcd in this agrecinent and to so notify the
Commission.

X. This Conciliation Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties on
the matters raised herein, and no other statement, promise, or agreement, either written or oral,
madc by cithcr party or by ageats of cithcr party, that is not containcd in this writlen agreementl

shall be enforceable.

FOR TIIE COMMISSION:

Thomasenia P. Duncan

General Counsel

BY: M ffzifo1
Ann Marie Terzaken N\ Date iy
Associatc Genceral Counscl

for Enforcement
FOR THE RESPONDENTS:

Z/ W 7-31-09

(Ndme) Ne.| Re.(( Date
(Position) cowu




